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PROSPECT CEMETERY, 159th Street and Beaver Road, Jamaica, Rorough of Queens.
Landmark Site: Borough of Queens Tax Map Block 10099, lot 36.

On November 9, 1976, the lLandmarks Preservation Commission held a
public hearing on the propecsed designation as a Landmark of Prospect
Cemetery and the proposed designation of the related landmark Site (Ttem
No. 5). The hearing had been duly advertised in accordance with the provi-
sions of law. Nine witnesses, including the representative of the Prospect
Cemetery Association, spoke in favor of desipnation. There were no sneakers
in onposition to desipgnation,

DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS

Prospect Cemetery, the early graveyard of the small town of Jamaica,
is one of the few remaining Colonial cemeteries in Queens. In the early
1600s, this site was part of the land belonging to the local tribe of
Indians known as the ''Yemecah', meaning beaver, an animal which thrived
in the area, In 1656, a pgroup of Fnglish colonists petitioned the Dutch
Governor-General, Peter Stuyvesant, to grant them a settlement which was
near today's John F., Kennedy Airport. Apparently, this site was not
satisfactory, and later in the same year, the colonists moved northward,
and descrihed themsleves: "We owners by nurchase from the Indians and
grant from the Governor and Coumcil--living at ye new plantation near unto
beaver pond, commonly calied Jamaica -- ... have reserved unto ourselves
10 acres of planting land a man ...." The NDutch called this area '"Rustdorn',
but after the surrender of the colony to the Rritish, 'Jamaica' was used
exclusively, In its first year of existence, the settlement elected Daniel
Denton, a member of a family which was to remain in the area for generationms,
as clerk of both the town and chiareh, illustrating the interrelationship
bhetween church and government in this early period, It was not until thirty
years later, in 1686, however, that .Jamaica was granted its charter as a
village by British Governor, Thomas Dongan,

The earliest record of the cemetery dates from November, 1668, when
townsman John Wascot was hired to enclose the "hurring pias", them ten rods
square, with a fence, five rails high. The cemetery was estahlished, therefore,
shortly before 1668, since it is douhtful that the town would allow such
hallowed pround to stand unprotected for very long, Several references were
made to the "burring place" during the 17th century, when citing other
locations in the town, The cemetery was generally known as the Presbyterian
burial ground, since it was associated with the 01d Stone Church built in
the 1690s, which stood near today's Union Hall Street. Due, however, to the
close interaction of church and state -- the church served also as the town
hall -- the cemetery was as well the property of the Town of .Jamaica.

The Presbyterian congregation in Jamaica came to blows with the Epis-
copalians in 1704, when the nroperty belonging to the Church was confiscated
and turned over to a representative of the Church of England, William
Urquhart, an Episcopalian minister. lrquhart occunied the parsonage for
five years, until he died in 1709, Shortly afterwards his wife surrendered
the property to Reverend fGeorge McNish,a Presbyterian minister., However,
simultaneously, another Epi&copalian preacher arrived in Jamaica, who thought
he should occupy the parsonage. Ultimately, the decision, aided by. the author
ity of the Presbyterian sheriff, was made hy the town, and Reverend McNish
moved into the parsonage.

In 1753, the intimate relationship between church and town came to an
end when it was voted at & town meeting to grant the land set apart for
the use of "a minister of Presbyterian denomination" to the Presbyterian
Church and congregation, for them 'to have and to hold ... forever in trust'.
The cemetery, however, was not specified as part of this transfer. As late
as 1879, the Town of Jamaica still retained title to the original burying
ground, but it may be possible that the Presbyterian Church used the cemetery,
while not actually owning it. When the Presbyterian Church anplied to
fiovernor William Tryon for incorporation in 1775, " a cemetery for the
interment of their DNead' was mentioned, but whether this was the town
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